

Meeting of:	Council
Date of Meeting:	Monday, 10 March 2025
Relevant Scrutiny Committee:	Corporate Performance and Resources
Report Title:	Amendments to the Council's Constitution
Purpose of Report:	To seek Council approval to amend the Council's Constitution
Report Owner:	V. Davidson, Monitoring Officer / Head of Legal and Democratic Services
Responsible Officer:	V. Davidson, Monitoring Officer / Head of Legal and Democratic Services
Elected Member and Officer Consultation:	This report does not require consultation to be undertaken.
Policy Framework:	This is a matter for decision by Full Council
<p>Executive Summary:</p> <p style="padding-left: 40px;">To obtain Council's approval for the following amendments to the Council's Constitution :</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> - Section 18 - To amend the Contract Procedure Rules at Section 18 to reflect the new Procurement Act 2023 and the Procurement (Wales) Regulations coming in to force from 24th February 2025. A copy of the suggested amendments is attached as Appendix 1 to this report for Council's approval. Section 26 - Officer delegations - - The Director of Learning and Skills paragraph 9 on current page 355 be amended to read The issuing, approval, variation and revocation of licences including chaperone licences under the Children and Young Persons Act 1933/63 and the Children (Performances and Activities) (Wales) Regulations 2015 in relation to children engaged in public performances, working in TV, film, paid modelling or sporting activities' - Director of Environment and Housing and Head of Neighbourhood Services and Transport – new number 35 on current page 359 - Authority, in consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member, to vary the Council's current winter maintenance gritting schedule (as defined in the Winter Service manual) to increase or decrease the routes for treatment by +/- 10% of the overall distance treated. 	

Recommendations

1. T H A T amendments to section 18 titled Contract Procedure Rules of the Council Constitution as detailed in Appendix 1 to this report and as outlined in paragraphs 2.1 to 2.8 be approved and the Council's Constitution amended accordingly.
2. T H A T the officer delegations as outlined in paragraph 2.9 of this report be approved and the Council's Constitution amended accordingly.

Reason for Recommendations

1. To reflect legislative changes introduced from 24th February 2025.
2. Having regard to legislation and in the interests of good governance.

1. Background

- 1.1 The Constitution remains under review on an ongoing basis. Under Section 2.4 of the Constitution the Monitoring Officer / Head of Legal and Democratic Services has a duty to monitor and review the operation of the Constitution to ensure that the aims and principles contained therein are given full effect. As part of this, a key role is to make recommendations to Council for ways the Constitution could be amended so that current democratic processes operate effectively and efficiently being mindful of arrangements in other comparable Local Authorities.
- 1.2 Having a Constitution which is reviewed and updated regularly serves a valuable and relevant purpose by striking a fair balance between the interests of the various groups within the Council e.g. between the largest political group and opposition group, between all Councillors and between Councillors and officers.
- 1.3 Most importantly the Constitution needs to enable the Council to operate effectively. It must deliver:
 - good governance behaviours
 - effective officer / Member relationships
 - clear and effective decision-making
 - strong accountability
 - clarity and consistency.

2. Key Issues for Consideration

2.1 Council is requested to approve amendments to the Contract Procedure Rules within the Council Constitution to reflect the new Procurement Act 2023 and the Procurement (Wales) Regulations coming in to force from 24th February 2025 as detailed at Appendix 1 to this report.

2.3 These changes predominantly impact the Contract Procedure Rules at a high level with references to the Act and Regulations replacing references to the Public Contract Regulations 2015 which had previously governed this space. The more detailed guidance on procurement to comply with the act is set out in the Procurement Code of Practice and the Ardal Buying Responsibly Guides which also being updated. The Ardal Buying Responsibly Guides are being gradually expanded and later in the year it is likely that there is sufficient content to enable the Procurement Code of Practice to drop away which will benefit the organisation with more streamlined guidance in place.

2.4 Opportunity has also been taken to update some of the language in the Contract Procedure Rules to ensure it is consistent with regulation and also to bring about consistency across the Ardal partnership which will benefit the Category Management Teams is providing advice across the four councils.

2.5 There are also a couple of changes as a consequence of the new Act to the Waivers set out in 18.4. These are to be used in exceptional circumstances which is now emphasized and there are new provisions for engaging with organisations undergoing insolvency proceedings and for choice contracts for the benefit of a particular individual. In the existing Contract Procedures requests for waivers were reviewed by Internal Audit ahead of sign off by the s151 Officer. This process is being amended in order that the Procurement professional can undertake this review and the wording in 18.4.3 enables this transition. The urgent exemption at paragraph 18.4.5 has been deleted as it duplicates the exception in 18.4.2 (f).

2.6 There are a number of exemptions to public procurement to which the existing Contract Procedure Rules were silent on. A key one being in respect of an individual care contract and there is, therefore, a new section (c) in paragraph at 18.4.6 to cover this.

2.7 A revision to section 18.8 on Approved List and Framework Agreements has been made as Approved Lists should not be in operation and therefore paragraph 18.8.1(a) has been deleted.

2.8 Section 18.8.2 Framework Agreements has also been updated, the Ardal Procurement Team will maintain a register of Contracts and Frameworks and advise on their use and exceptions to their use. A minor change has been made to 18.10 Pre Market Testing and Consultation which is replaced with Preliminary Market Engagement and further clarification is provided in 18.13.1 on use of the electronic procurement system and dealing with late tenders.

2.9 Council is also requested to consider amendments to Section 26 officer delegations in respect of delegations for the Director of Learning and Skills and the Director of Environment and Housing and Head of Neighbourhood Services and Transport as below –

Current Page No	Paragraph No	Amendments
355	9	<p>Director of Learning and Skills - Schools - To amend Paragraph 9 to include the variation and revocation of licences following a Court decision as below-</p> <p>The issuing, approval, variation and revocation of licences including chaperone licences under the Children and Young Persons Act 1933/63 and the Children (Performances and Activities) (Wales) Regulations 2015 in relation to children engaged in public performances, working in TV, film, paid modelling or sporting activities’</p>
359	New number 35	<p>Director of Environment and Housing and Head of Neighbourhood Services and Transport to include an additional delegation as below -</p> <p>Authority, in consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member, to vary the Council’s current winter maintenance gritting schedule (as defined in the Winter Service manual) to increase or decrease the routes for treatment by + /- 10% of the overall distance treated.</p>

3. How do proposals evidence the Five Ways of Working and contribute to our Well-being Objectives?

- 3.1 The proposals contained in the report ensure that the Council can continue to meet its statutory obligations, operational service delivery, strategic aims and wellbeing objectives.

4. Climate Change and Nature Implications

- 4.1 None as a direct result of this report.

5. Resources and Legal Considerations

Financial

- 5.1 None as a direct result of this report.

Employment

5.2 None as a direct result of this report.

Legal (Including Equalities)

5.3 The Council is required to comply with the relevant legislation requirements.

6. Background Papers

None.

SECTION 18

18. CONTRACTS PROCEDURE RULES

Index

Ref	Details	Page
18.1	Introduction	189
18.2	Chief Officers	189
18.3	Basic Principles	189
18.4	Waiver of These Contracts Procedure Rules	191
18.5	Advertising	193
18.6	Relevant Contracts	193
18.7	Risk Assessments	194
18.8	Approved Lists and Framework Agreements	194
18.9	Procurement Valuation	195
18.10	Pre-Tender Market Testing and Consultation	195
18.11	Invitation to Tender / Request for Quotations	195
18.12	Evaluation Criteria and Standards	195
18.13	Submission, Receipt and Opening of Tenders / Quotations	197
18.14	Post-Tender Negotiations	197
18.15	Evaluation, Award of Contract and Debriefing of Organisations	198
18.16	Contract Documents	198
18.17	Legal Services Review of Tenders and Contracts	199
18.18	Prevention of Bribery and Corruption	199
18.19	Declarations of Interests	199
18.20	Contract Management / Monitoring	199
18.21	Internal Providers	200
18.22	External Body Grant Funding	200
18.23	Review and Amendments of Contracts Procedure Rules	200

CONTRACTS PROCEDURE RULES

18.1 Introduction

These Contracts Procedure Rules (CPRs) are made pursuant to Section 135 of the Local Government Act 1972 and include the Procurement Code of Practice (PCoP) and any other procurement notes made thereunder from time to time.

18.2 Chief Officers

In these CPRs “Chief Officer” means the Chief Executive, Directors and Heads of Service and Operational Managers.

18.3 Basic Principles

18.3.1 All procurement procedures must:

- (a) Realise value for money by achieving the optimum combination of whole life costs and quality of outcome;
- (b) Be consistent with the highest standards of integrity;
- (c) Operate in a transparent manner;
- (d) Ensure fairness in allocating public contracts;
- (e) Comply with all legal requirements;
- (f) Support all relevant Council priorities, policies and strategic and financial plans;
- (g) Have full regard to the Council’s Procurement Policy & Strategy; and
- (h) Comply with the Council’s PCoP, ~~and~~ Financial Procedure Rules (FPRs) and the Buying Responsibly Guides.

N.B. These Rules shall be applied to the contracting activities in respect of which the Council is the accountable body unless the Council expressly agrees otherwise.

18.3.2 Chief Officers have the responsibility for all contracts tendered and let under their control. They are accountable to the Cabinet for the performance of their duties in relation to contract letting and management, which are:

- (a) to ensure compliance with English and Welsh legislation and Council Policy;
- (b) to ensure Best Value is achieved in all procurement matters;
- (c) to maintain a departmental scheme of delegation;

- (d) to keep proper records of all contracts, tenders etc., including minutes of tender evaluation panels and other meetings;
- (e) Chief Officers shall have particular responsibility to ensure that all relevant procurements are undertaken within the agreed budgets and that Cabinet approval has been obtained where appropriate.

18.3.3 Officer Responsibilities

18.3.3.1 Officers

- (a) Officers will comply with these CPRs, FPRs, the Council's Constitution and with all UK legal requirements. Officers must ensure that any agents, consultants and contractual partners acting on their behalf also comply.
- (b) Officers will:
 - (i) have regard to the guidance in the PCoP [and Buying Responsibly Guides](#);
 - (ii) keep the records required by these CPRs;
 - (iii) take all necessary procurement, legal, financial and professional advice, taking into account the requirements of these CPRs including the PCoP and FPRs;
 - (iv) prior to letting a contract on behalf of the Council, check whether:
 - (A) The Council already has an appropriate contract in place in the Corporate Contracts Register; or
 - (B) An appropriate national, regional or other collaborative contract is already in place:
 - where the Council already has an appropriate contract in place, then this must be used unless it can be established that the contract does not fully meet the Council's specific requirements in this particular case, and this is agreed following consultation with [Corporate the Ardal Procurement Team and the reasons set out on the Pre -Tender Report Form](#);
 - where an appropriate national, regional or collaborative contract is available, the same is to be used unless such contract does not offer value for money;
 - (v) ensure that when an employee, either of the Council or of a service provider, may be affected by any transfer

arrangement, then any Transfer of Undertaking (Protection of Employment) issues are considered and legal and HR advice from within the Council is obtained prior to proceeding with the procurement exercise.

- (c) Failure to comply with any of the provisions of these CPRs, FPRs, the other sections of the Council's Constitution or UK legal requirements may be brought to the attention of the Monitoring Officer, Section 151 Officer, Head of Internal Audit, or relevant Director as appropriate. Depending on the nature of the non-compliance this may result in disciplinary action being taken;
- (d) It shall be a condition of any contract between the Council and any person (not being an Officer of the Council) who is required to manage a contract on the Council's behalf that, in relation to such contract, they shall comply in all respects with the requirements of these CPRs as if he/she were an employee of the Council.

18.3.3.2 Chief Officers

Chief Officers will:

- (a) Ensure their Service complies fully with the requirements of these CPRs;
- (b) Ensure contracts are recorded in the Corporate Contracts Register as held and maintained by Corporate Procurement;
- (c) Ensure that their Service provides the requisite information to allow the Council to maintain the Procurement Work Programme.

18.4 **Waiver /-Exception to these Contracts Procedure Rules**

18.4.1 Except where the [Procurement Act 2023 and Procurement \(Wales\) Regulations 2024](#)~~Public Contracts Regulations 2015~~ apply, Cabinet has the power to waive any requirements within these CPRs for specific projects.

18.4.2 Additionally [in exceptional circumstances](#), these Rules may be waived or varied [in accordance with Schedule 5 of the Procurement Act](#) where the circumstances are certified in advance by the Section 151 Officer (advised as appropriate by the Officer from time to time with operational responsibility for Internal Audit) and subject to any conditions in relation to any such waiver that the Section 151 Officer advised as meeting any of the following criteria:

- (a) for works, supplies or services which are either patented or of such special character that it is not possible to obtain competitive prices;
- (b) for supplies purchased in a [commodity market](#), public market or auction;
- (c) with an organisation which has won a contract for an earlier phase of work via a competitive process and where the work forms part of a serial programme

and has previously been identified and originally advertised as such and in accordance with existing rates or indices;

- (d) with an organisation already engaged by the Council for a similar and related procurement and where there is significant benefit to extending the contract to cover this additional requirement, without exposing the Council to unacceptable risk provided always that there is no breach of any legal requirements and [Procurement Act 2023 and Procurement \(Wales\) Regulations 2024](#)~~Public Contracts Regulations 2015~~;
- (e) for works, supplies or services which are of a proprietary nature and only available from one organisation;
- (f) ~~in the event of extreme and unavoidable urgency, where a contract cannot be awarded on the basis of a competitive tendering procedure. The urgency cannot be as a result of any act or omission of the Council and also could not have been foreseen by the Council; involving such strictly necessary and unavoidable urgency that is not as a result of any act or omission that is attributable to the Council and could not have been foreseen; for reasons that could not reasonably have been foreseen that it is not possible to comply with these CPRs.~~
- (g) in relation to time limited grant funding from an external body, where the time limitations will not allow a competitive procurement process to be completed and where the grant conditions allow this; ~~or~~
- (h) where relevant UK legislation not otherwise referred to in these CPRs prevents the usual procurement process from being followed.
- (i) [with an organisation undergoing insolvency proceedings and the Council can benefit from advantageous terms;](#)
- (j) [user choice contracts supplied for the benefit of a particular individual – see Schedule 5 of the Procurement Act for further information;](#)

18.4.3 ~~The appropriate Chief Officer will complete and submit a Waiver form, as contained within the PCoP, for approval by the Section 151 Officer prior to incurring the expenditure.~~ [The Chief Officer will follow Waiver-/Exceptions Guidance issued by the Procurement Team. Where a Waiver-/Exception is being relied on, compliance with the Waiver process must be confirmed on the Pre-Tender Report Form.](#)

18.4.4 Every Waiver form will be recorded on a master register, ~~to be maintained by Internal Audit~~

~~18.4.5 To cover urgent special educational needs, urgent social care contracts or urgent operational needs, if in the opinion of the relevant Director it is considered to be in the Council's interests or necessary to meet the Authority's obligations under relevant legislation without obtaining prior approval, then,~~

~~the use of this exemption by the relevant Director must be followed up with a written report under Rule 18.4.3 using the Variation form, setting out the reason for such urgency, how it complies with relevant legislation and represents value for money.~~

18.4.6 These CPRs do not apply to contracts:

- (a) for the execution of mandatory works by statutory utility undertakers;
- (b) which have been procured on the Council's behalf:
 - (i) through collaboration with other Local Authorities or other public bodies, where a competitive process which complies with the CPRs of the leading organisation has been carried out;
 - (ii) by a National or Regional contracting authority where the process followed is in line with the [Procurement Act 2023 and Procurement \(Wales\) Regulations 2024](#)~~Public Contracts Regulations 2015~~ (as amended from time to time); or
 - (iii) under the terms of a Strategic Partnership arrangement approved by the Cabinet.

~~(c) For an individual care contract. That is a contract for services entered into in pursuance of powers under The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 for the benefit of an individual, where:~~

- ~~(i) the estimated value is below the *Light Touch Regime* under the [Procurement Act](#) (and/or is not a [Regulated Below Threshold Contract](#)).~~
- ~~(ii) the Council does not have any existing framework or umbrella arrangements in place in respect of the relevant service.~~
- ~~(iii) the individual care contract represents value for money and;~~
- ~~(iv) where the contract is required to honour the preference of the individual service user; or~~
- ~~(v) is required as a matter of emergency in the interest of the welfare of the individual service user.~~

18.5 **Advertising**

The Chief Officers will ensure that the minimum advertising requirements as outlined in the PCoP, are met.

18.6 **Relevant Contracts**

18.6.1 All Contracts must comply with these CPRs. A Contract is any arrangement made by, or on behalf of, the Council for the carrying out of works, supplies or services. These include arrangements for:

- (a) the supply of goods;
- (b) the execution of works;

- (c) the hire, rental or lease of goods or equipment;
- (d) the delivery of services, including (but not limited to) those related to:
 - (i) The recruitment of staff, e.g. agency staff, estate agents, valuers;
 - (ii) Land transactions;
 - (iii) Financial and consultancy services;
 - (iv) Opinions of Counsel obtained by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services.

18.6.2 Relevant Contracts do not include:

- (a) contracts of employment which make an individual a direct employee of the Authority;
- (b) agreements regarding the acquisition, disposal, or transfer of land (to which the FPRs apply); or
- (c) the payment of grants to third parties;
- (d) land transactions.

N.B. While grants are not covered by these CPRs, there are rules on the awarding of grants which do need to be observed including obtaining approval from the External Funding Group. The Council cannot simply choose to treat a procurement as a grant in order to avoid conducting a competitive process.

18.6.3 The [Procurement Act 2023 and Procurement \(Wales\) Regulations 2024](#)~~Public Contracts Regulations 2015~~ require contracting authorities to maintain the following comprehensive records of procurement activities:

- (a) contract details including value;
- (b) selection decision;
- (c) justification for use of the selected procedure;
- (d) names of bidding organisations, both successful and unsuccessful;
- (e) reasons for selection;
- (f) reasons for abandoning a procedure.

18.7 **Risk Assessments**

18.7.1 All procurement shall follow the process set out in the Council's Project Management Tool Kit including the approved risk assessment matrix.

18.7.2 All procurements via Invitation to Tender, and Requests for Quotation where appropriate, must be supported by a risk assessment. This risk assessment must be carried out at the start of the procurement process.

18.7.3 The risk assessment process will identify where further specialist advice should be sought.

18.8 **Approved Lists and Framework Agreements**

18.8.1 Approved Lists

- (a) ~~Approved lists should only be used in accordance with the guidance contained in the PCoP.~~
- (b) Approved lists must not be used where they are prohibited under the [Procurement Act 2023 and Procurement \(Wales\) Regulations 2024](#).

~~Public Contracts Regulations 2015.~~

18.8.2 Framework Agreements.

- (a) Framework Agreements are agreements between the Council and one, or ~~three or~~ more suppliers for the provision of goods, works or services on agreed terms for a specific period, for estimated quantities against which orders may be placed if and when required during the contract period.
- (b) ~~The Procurement Team maintain a register of contracts and framework agreements in the Supply Directory and can provide advice on their use and any exceptions granted. The term of a Framework Agreement must not exceed four years and, while an agreement may be entered into with one provider, where an agreement is concluded with several organisations, there must be at least two in number.~~
- (c) ~~The use of frameworks not listed in the Supply Directory is only permissible once the **Procurement Team** has approved its use (including checking that the framework agreement concerned may be relied upon by the Council). The Procurement Team will be able to advise on the use on 'non -Welsh' Frameworks and any additional requirements when using these Frameworks.~~
- (d) ~~When using framework agreements, all guidance issued in relation to the use of the Framework concerned must be considered by the Service Area and followed. The award criteria, weightings and the terms and conditions of contract specified in the framework agreement must be used~~

~~Where Frameworks are awarded to several organisations, contracts based on Framework Agreements may be awarded by way of call-off, or mini competition, in either case following the procedure set out in the PCoP.~~

18.9 **Procurement Valuation**

- 18.9.1 The Chief Officer must establish the total value of the procurement including whole life costs and incorporating any potential extension periods which may be awarded.
- 18.9.2 Based on this value, quotations or tenders must then be invited in line with the financial thresholds detailed in the PCoP.
- 18.9.3 Where the [Procurement Act 2023 and Procurement \(Wales\) Regulations 2024](#)~~Public Contracts Regulations 2015~~ apply, the Chief Officer shall consult Corporate Procurement to determine the procedure for conducting the procurement exercise.

18.10 Preliminary -Tender-Market Testing and ConsultationEngagement

- 18.10.1 [Before publishing a Tender Notice](#) ~~t~~The Council may consult potential suppliers, ~~prior to the issue of the Invitation to Tender or Request for Quotation~~, in general terms about the nature, level and standard of the supply, contract packaging and other relevant matters, provided this does not prejudice any potential organisation. Guidance is contained in the PCoP.
- 18.10.2 When engaging with potential suppliers, the Council must not seek or accept technical advice on the preparation of an Invitation to Tender or Quotation from anyone who may have a commercial interest in them, and where this may prejudice the equal treatment of all potential bidding organisations or distort competition.
- 18.10.3 In undertaking any market testing activities, the Officer responsible should refer to any guidance contained in the PCoP. [The Procurement Team will be able to advise on Preliminary Market Engagement Notices.](#)

18.11 Invitation to Tender (ITT) / Request for Quotations (RFQ)

Above the single quotation threshold outlined in the PCoP, all Invitations to Tender (ITT) and Requests for Quotation (RFQ) including e-tendering must be undertaken in accordance with the procedures set out in the PCoP.

18.12 Evaluation Criteria and Standards

18.12.1 Evaluation Criteria

- (a) In any procurement exercise the successful bid should be the one which either:
- (i) offers the most ~~economically~~ advantageous tender which is a balance between quality and price or
 - (ii) offers the lowest price;

The Council will use criteria linked to the subject matter of the contract to determine that an offer is the most ~~economically~~ advantageous. Criteria may include price, quality, technical merit, aesthetic and functional characteristics, environmental characteristics, running costs, cost effectiveness, after-sales

service, technical assistance, delivery date, delivery period and period of completion.

- (b) Issues that are important to the Council in terms of meeting its corporate objectives can be used to evaluate bids as an element achieving the outcomes set out at 17.12.1 (a) above. The criteria can include, for example sustainability and Future Generation considerations, support for the local economy and community, or the use of sub-contractors. The bidding organisations' approaches to continuous improvement and setting targets for service improvement or future savings could also be included. All criteria must relate to the subject matter of the contract, be in line with the Council's corporate objectives and must be objectively quantifiable and non-discriminatory.
- (c) All above threshold tenders are required to have social value as a minimum of 10% of the evaluation criteria.
- (d) The procurement documentation must clearly explain the basis of the decision to bidding organisations, making clear how the evaluation criteria specified in the process will be applied, the overall weightings to be attached to each of the high-level criteria, how the high-level criteria are divided into any sub-criteria and the weightings attached to each of those sub-criteria.
- (e) In all cases the process that must be followed is set out in the PCoP; reference should be made to the PCoP.

18.12.2 Standards

- (a) Relevant British and International Standards which apply to the subject matter of the contract and which are necessary to properly describe the required quality must be included with the contract.
- (b) Officers should refer to any further guidance outlined in the PCoP.

18.12.3 Clarification Procedures

- (a) The Council can ask bidding organisations for clarification of any details submitted as part of their bid. However, any such clarification must not involve changes to the basic features of the bidding organisation's submission.
- (b) When requesting clarification, the Chief Officer must follow any guidance contained in the PCoP.

18.13 Submission, Receipt and Opening of Tenders / Quotations

18.13.1 Tenders and Quotations

- (a) Bidding organisations must be given an adequate period in which to prepare and submit a proper quotation or tender, consistent with the complexity of the contract requirements. Where the [Procurement Act 2023 and Procurement \(Wales\) Regulations 2024](#)~~Public Contract Regulations 2015~~ apply, the Regulations lay down specific minimum time periods for tenders.
- (b) [Where these rules require and even when the rules do not require but it is practicable the Council's electronic procurement system must be used and all tenders submitted by electronic arrangements via the Council's electronic procurement system. After the tender submission deadline has passed tenders submitted electronically must be opened in accordance with guidance issued by the Head of Procurement, and the electronic record kept shall, as a minimum meet the requirements set out in the guidance document issued by the Head of Procurement on the opening and recording of electronic tender submissions.](#)
- (c) [Tenders received after the date and time for receipt of tenders will only be opened and considered with the agreement of Head of Procurement and Director of Governance and Legal Services \(or their nominated officer, who should be at Operational Manager level or above\) if this was the result of an identified system wide failure of the Council's e-procurement system \(and not the bidders' ICT system\) and notification has been received by the Council in advance of the tender deadline.](#)

~~The Head of Legal and Democratic Services shall make arrangements for tenders to be opened, as soon as is practicable after the closing date for their receipt, in the presence of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services (or nominated representative) and Chief Officer (or nominated representative). A register of all tenders opened shall be maintained. For contracts lower in value than the tender threshold as specified in the PCOP, Chief Officers shall ensure that a register of quotations shall be maintained.~~

- (~~d~~e) Chief Officers shall ensure that [their staff complete a Quotation Record Form for quotations above £10,000](#)~~a register of quotations shall be maintained.~~ Further guidance is set out in PCoP.
- (~~e~~d) [For below threshold tenders](#) ~~t~~The Council shall have power to disqualify from submitting further tenders to the Authority, those tenderers who, in their opinion, have withdrawn tenders unreasonably, who have been in breach of any contract with the Council, or for any reason properly considered as being justifiable and reasonable.

18.13.2 Supplier Selection/Conditions of Participation Any supplier selection must have regard to the economic, financial and technical standards relevant to the contract and the evaluation criteria stipulated. Special rules apply to contracts covered by the [Procurement Act 2023 and Procurement \(Wales\) Regulations](#)

~~2024 Public Contracts Regulations 2015~~. Officers should refer to any further guidance contained in the PCoP.

18.14 **Post-Tender Negotiations**

18.14.1 Where an Open, ~~Restricted or Competitive Dialogue~~ procedure is used, no post tender negotiations are permitted. The responsible Officer may seek clarification from tenderers where appropriate in consultation with ~~Ardal Corporate~~ Procurement. Negotiations on price are never permissible except where it has been expressly allowed for within the competitive flexible procedure ~~with negotiation is used. The negotiated procedure should only be used in those exceptional cases where it is lawful to do so under the Public Contract Regulations 2015.~~

18.14.2 Where procurements do not exceed the Public Procurement thresholds, the agreement of Corporate Procurement to authorise negotiations must be sought. Such actions must not distort competition.

18.15 Evaluation, Award of Contract and Debriefing of Organisations

18.15.1 Evaluation

The procedure for the evaluation of bids is set out at Paragraph 18.12.1.

18.15.2 Award of Contract

- (a) The Council is required to notify successful and unsuccessful bidders of the outcome of a procurement process, in writing, in as timely a fashion as possible.
- (b) Where procurement has been subject to the [Procurement Act 2023 and Procurement \(Wales\) Regulations 2024](#)~~Public Contract Regulations 2015~~, the Standstill (an ~~eight working~~ day standstill period before a contract can be awarded to allow an unsuccessful bidding organisation an opportunity to challenge the proposed contract award) will need to be included in the procurement timetable before the contract can be awarded. Full information regarding the Standstill is contained within the PCoP.
- (c) Chief Officers have been granted delegated authority to accept tenders for the supply of goods or materials and services and for the execution of works to £300,000 subject to:
 - (i) the expenditure being contained within the approved budget;
 - (ii) compliance with the PCoP;
 - (iii) for amounts greater than £75,000, the approval of the relevant Cabinet Member being obtained.
- (d) A record should be maintained of such acceptance [by completion of a Contract Award Report](#).—Compliance with reporting requirements to Cabinet and/or of Cabinet Member approval and within the timescales as set out in the PCoP.

18.15.3 Debriefing

The debriefing of organisations must be carried out in line with the requirements of the [Procurement Act 2023 and Procurement \(Wales\) Regulations 2024](#)~~Public Contract Regulations 2015~~ and any guidance detailed in the PCoP.

18.16 Contract Documents

18.16.1 Format of Contract Documents

Appropriate contract documents as advised by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services or conditions issued by a relevant professional body will be used.

18.16.2 Contract Signature

- (a) All contracts with a value of £75,000 or greater or as determined by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services shall be in the form of a Deed, made under the Council's seal and attested as required by the Constitution.
- (b) All other contracts shall be in the form of an agreement, (i.e. not a Deed requiring sealing) either:
 - (i) be signed by at least two Officers of the Council authorised as required by the Constitution; or
 - (ii) be formalised by the sending of an award letter confirming that the Agreement will incorporate the Council's terms and conditions and the subsequent issuing of a purchase order.

18.17 Legal Services Review of Tenders and Contracts

To ensure the integrity of the procurement process:

- (a) all proposed Invitations to Tender, where they are not in compliance with the Council's terms and conditions or standard terms and conditions issued by a relevant professional body, will be reviewed by Legal Services;
- (b) any proposed Invitations to Tender, which are subject to the [Procurement Act 2023 and Procurement \(Wales\) Regulations 2024](#)~~Public Contracts Regulations 2015~~, or which are deemed to be of high risk, in accordance with the Council's Project Management toolkit must be reviewed by Legal Services;
- (c) any proposed contract where there is any deviation from the contract terms included in the Invitation to Tender must be reviewed by Legal Services.

18.18 Prevention of Bribery and Corruption

Rules and regulations pertaining to the prevention of Bribery and Corruption are outlined in the Council's FPRs, Council's Anti-Fraud and Bribery Policy and Employees' Code of Conduct and must be adhered to.

18.19 Declarations of Interests / Conflicts of Interest

Rules and regulations pertaining to the Declarations of Interests are outlined in the Code of Conduct for Employees within the Constitution and must be adhered to.

[The Council must undertake a "conflicts assessment" before publishing a tender or transparency notice or a dynamic market notice. If a conflict of interest or potential conflict of interest is identified the Council must set out the steps it has taken or will take to demonstrate that no such conflict of interest exists. The Council must keep any assessment under review, revise as is necessary and when publishing any notice confirm that a conflicts assessment has been prepared and revised in accordance with the Procurement Act \(Part5\).](#)

18.20 Contract Management / Monitoring

Contract management, monitoring, evaluation and review must be conducted in line with any guidance detailed in the PCoP and Council's Project Management toolkit.

18.21 **Internal Providers**

Where an in-house Service is bidding in competition for the provision of goods, works or services, care must be taken to ensure a fair process between the in house Service and external bidding organisations, further guidance is detailed in the PCoP.

18.22 **External Body Grant Funding**

18.22.1 Where a procurement process is funded, in whole or part, by grant funding which has been awarded to the Council by an external funding body, the Chief Officer must ensure that any rules or conditions imposed by the funding body are adhered to, in addition to the requirements of these CPRs.

18.22.2 Where there is any conflict between these CPRs and the rules or conditions imposed by the funding body, the stricter requirement should be followed.

18.23 **Review and Amendments of Contracts Procedure Rules**

These CPRs shall be reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the ongoing review of the Constitution.